
 BUCKLEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Tuesday, September 9, 2025, at 6:00 P.M. 
Multi-Purpose Center, 811 Main Street 
Next Ordinance #07-25, Next Resolution #25-06, Next Agenda Bill #25-043 
Or Via Zoom: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83366597529?pwd=N2hMTmh5eEZ4TGpJd2dpbFp0cnkvdz09 
Call-in Number: 253-215-8782 
Meeting ID: 833 6659 7529    Meeting Passcode: 863441 

A. CALL TO ORDER
1. Pledge of Allegiance
2. Roll call
3. Agenda Modifications
4. Announcements, Appointments and Presentations

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Time Limit of Three Minutes (Citizens wishing to speak are Encouraged to sign
up at City Hall by Wednesday prior to the Council Meeting)

C. COMMITTEE REPORTS
1. Mayor’s Report Burkett 
2. Senior Citizens Advisory Commission

D. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Approve Minutes of April 1, 2025, City Council Study Session
b. Approve Minutes of May 13, 2025, City Council Meeting
c. Approve Minutes of May 27, 2025, City Council Meeting
d. Claims & Payroll

E. REGULAR AGENDA

1. ORDINANCE
a. ORD No. ___-25: Amending BMC 6.04.050(8) Related to Business Licensing

2. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
a. Donation and Construction Agreement with Pedals for the People for a Pump Track

Facility

F. STAFF REPORTS
1. City Administrator Update

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Time Limit of Three Minutes

H. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS & GOOD OF THE ORDER
a. Reschedule of November 11, 2025, City Council Meeting

I. ADJOURNMENT

City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025 1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 

City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

4



 

City Council Study Session – April 1, 2025 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
STUDY SESSION 

April 1, 2025 
 
ATTENDEES: Council members Smith, Arsanto, Burbank, Anderson and Bergerson.  
 
Also, in attendance were: City Administrator Brunell, Director of Parks and Recreation Snodgrass and 
Deputy City Clerk Clark.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM.  
 
FFA Presentations: 
Enumclaw High School FFA performed a debate representing farmland owners, housing developments 
expanding, and project managers of the construction company.   
 
The debate was about the opportunity of growth vs. lasting harm on the town and agriculture.   
 
EHS FFA did a fabulous job and council members asked questions to the students and were very impressed 
with how well they did.   
 
Review of BDA Art Application: 
Director of Parks and Recreation Snodgrass updated Council that on March 17th the Citizens Advisory 
Commission reviewed the application for the People on the Plateau Series: Kempinski Drugstore and they 
evaluated the proposal based on its alignment with the Public Art Policy adopted July 2024.  The People 
of the Plateau Series: Kempinski Drugstore is the first application to be reviewed.   
 
The People on the Plateau Series: Kempinski Drugstore is a public art project proposed by the Buckley 
Downtown Association.  The installation will feature a historical metal-printed photograph located at 691 
Main Street, facing Cedar Street.   
 
The project aims to celebrate Buckley’s rich history while fostering community pride, a sense of belonging, 
and cultural appreciation. This will be brought to Council at the April 8th meeting for adoption.  Council 
member Smith stated he agrees the policy limits allowed should be for relevant historical art for Buckley 
only. 
 
Park and Fire Impact Fees: 
Annie Sieger from Sieger Consulting presented a slideshow regarding Park and Fire Impact Fees.  The 
presentation included:  
 

· About impact fees and setting the rates 
· Impact Fee Rate Study Approach 
· Expected Population and Employment Growth 
· Parks Impact Fee Update 
· Fire Impact Fee Rate Study 
· Current Call Volume for Fire 
· Estimating Increase in Call Volume Based on Growth 
· Apparatus and Equipment Needs 

 

City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

5



 

City Council Study Session – April 1, 2025 
 
 

Council discussed the slideshow and gave their opinions.  Council member Arsanto stated he would like 
to have a further discussion at an upcoming study session regarding funding for the Fire Dept.  
 
With nothing further, the Study Session was adjourned at 7:26 PM.  
 

 
             
City Administrator                                                                                   Mayor 
 
 
Prepared by: Jessica Clark, Deputy City Clerk  
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

6



 

City Council Minutes –May 13, 2025 1 
  
 

City Council 
May 13, 2025 

 
Mayor Burkett called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present: Smith, Anderson, Arsanto, Burbank, 
Bergerson, and Green. 
 
Also present were: City Administrator Brunell, Finance Director Hines, Police Chief 
Alfano, City Engineer Miller, Firefighter Smith, Public Services Director Banks, and City 
Clerk Zumek. 
 
Council member Anderson moved to excuse Council member Bender. Council member 
Arsanto seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Burkett asked if there were any other additions, deletions, or changes to the 
amended agenda. 
 
Council member Smith moved to approve the agenda as amended.  Council member 
Arsanto seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Announcements, Appointments, and Presentations: 
 
Street Naming Presentation – Gene Smith 
Mayor Burkett shared some history regarding Gene Smith’s contributions to the City of 
Buckley and presented the family with a certificate and replica of the street sign that will 
be placed in a new housing development in Buckley. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
Sandra Anderson – Ms. Anderson came to share her concerns with the bee keeping 
setbacks in the Code and requested that Council look at doing an update. 
 
Carolyn Harding – Ms. Harding shared as the Chamber President she wanted to thank 
the City staff for getting the new banners hung up and she is looking forward to hearing 
from the City attorney on the agreement for the speakers and hopes this can happen 
before log show weekend. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Mayor’s Report:  Mayor Burkett shared that due to the sale of two large businesses in 
Buckley, REET dollars are up. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

7



 

City Council Minutes –May 13, 2025 2 
  
 

Development Services, Utilities & Transportation 
Council member Arsanto shared that the Committee met today and discussed the 
following: 

· Vactor truck purchase update 
· Two new Utility Workers start on June 2nd 
· Six-Year Transportation Improvement Plan 
· ADA and Sidewalk project 
· Speed limit plan 
· Photo enforcement 
· Buckley Gas & Coffee 

 
Senior Citizen Advisory Commission: 
Council member Bergerson shared that the Commission met on May 7th and discussed 
the following: 

· Director Snodgrass shared sample reports that the County requires regarding the 
Senior Center. 

· Senior Center Coordinator provided the Commission with May and June 
activities for the Senior Center. 

· Director Snodgrass reviewed the Strategic Planning Goals and Objectives and the 
draft of the new Volunteer Handbook.  

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Council Member Smith moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Council member  
Green seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 

a. Final Acceptance – Foothills Trail Parking Lot Project 
b. Final Acceptance – Mundy Loss Road Storm Project 
c. Claim check numbers 69297 through 69368 in the amount of $ 708,765.80 for 

the period of April 8, 2025, through April 21, 2025; and payroll check 
numbers 412729 through 41821 in the amount of $1284,327.08, and ACH 
payroll in the amount of $483,109.70 for April 22nd through May 12th; and 
claim check numbers 69369 through 69434 in the amount of $138,687.23 for 
April 22nd through May 12, 2025, are hereby approved and ordered paid this 
13th day of May 2025. 

d. Approve Minutes of January 14, 2025, City Council Meeting 
e. Approve Minutes of January 28, 2025, City Council Meeting 
f. Approve Minutes of February 11, 2025, City Council Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

8



 

City Council Minutes –May 13, 2025 3 
  
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 
Purchase of Springbrook Cirrus Financial Software 
Council member Burbank moved to Approve the Purchase of Springbrook Cirrus 
Software. Council member Anderson seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF REPORTS  
 
1st Quarter Public Safety Report 
Police Chief Alfano stated that his report was included in the Council packet and he 
would be happy to answer any questions. 
 
City Administrator Update 
City Administrator Brunell shared that the Spring Community Newsletter went to the 
printer today.  The new website will launch on May 28th. The new camera at the skate 
park has been installed and the Grand Opening of the Doc Tait Pavilion will be on August 
7th. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
Meagan Rhodes – Ms. Rhodes shared her concerns with folks turning in or out of the 
new McDonalds the wrong way. 
 
Council Member Comments & Good of the Order:  
Council member Smith shared that he feels we should look at updating the beehive 
setback. He also stated that if any photo enforcement was allowed, it would have to be 
with Washington State Patrol as Highway 410 is a State Highway. Police Chief Alfano 
shared that WSDOT will not allow cameras on lights on State highways. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to adjourn.  Council member Smith seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further, the meeting was adjourned at 6:27 PM. 
 
 
 
 
Mayor       City Administrator 
 
 
Prepared by: Treva Zumek, City Clerk/HR Administrator 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

9



 

City Council Minutes –May 27, 2025 1 
  
 

  
City Council 

May 27, 2025 
 
Mayor Burkett called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Smith, Burbank, Bergerson, Green, 
and Bender (via Zoom). 
 
Council member Burbank moved to excuse Council members Anderson and Arsanto. 
Council member Smith seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Also present were: City Administrator Brunell, Public Services Director Banks, Fire Chief 
Skogen, Police Chief Alfano, Firefighter Smith, Senior Planner Farnsworth, City Engineer 
Miller (via Zoom), and City Clerk Zumek. 
 
Mayor Burkett asked if there were any other additions, deletions, or changes to the 
agenda. 
 
Council member Smith moved to approve the agenda as amended.  Council member 
Green seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Announcements, Appointments, and Presentations: 
 
Mayor Burket read and presented a Proclamation to Representatives Penner. 
Unfortunately Representative Stokesbary was unable to join us tonight. 
 
Representative Penner expressed his appreciation and thanked everyone for their hard 
work in convincing the State not to close Rainier State School.  
 
Several employees of Rainier State School, community members, clients of Rainier State 
School and Council shared their thanks and appreciation for all of the hard work by 
everyone involved. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Mayor’s Report:  Mayor Burkett shared that the siding and the steps are being installed 
at City Hall. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
Public Hearing: Comprehensive Plan Update 
Mayor Burkett convened the Public Hearing at 6:31 PM. 

City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

10



 

City Council Minutes –May 27, 2025 2 
  
 

Senior Planner Farnsworth provided a brief presentation on the Comprehensive Plan 
and what has been updated since the last time it was brought before Council. 
 
Josh Hosford – Mr. Hosford shared that he is the President of Citizens Alliance for 
Property Rights. He thanked Mr. Farnsworth for his presentation and shared his concern 
for what he feels is the biggest change since the plan was adopted in December is the 
30-50 units being changed to 15-40 and feels the City was not transparent about this 
change. 
 
Sandra Anderson  - Ms. Anderson shared her concerns with the Fire Risk Mitigation and 
that the roads would not accommodate everyone trying to get out in the event of a 
major fire. 
 
Upon no further testimony, Mayor Burkett closed the Public Hearing and reconvened 
the Council meeting at 6:39 PM. 
 
License Agreement between the City of Buckley and the Buckley Chamber of 
Commerce (Audio Speakers) 
Council member Burbank moved to Approve the License Agreement between the City 
of Buckley and the Buckley Chamber of Commerce.  Council member Smith seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Interlocal Agreement with DSHS for Protection Services 
Council member Green moved to Approve the Interlocal Agreement for Fire 
Protection and Emergency Medical Services with DSHS (Rainier School). Council 
member Bergerson seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF REPORTS  
 
City Administrator Update: City Administrator Brunell shared that the Spiketon Bridge 
opening was supposed to be this summer but has run into some soil issues. 
 
City Clerk Zumek shared that the Passport event went great and over 100 passport 
applications were processed. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
Sandra Anderson  - Ms. Anderson shared that she was before Council again to request 
that they discuss changing the Code regarding beehive setbacks.  
 
Council Member Comments & Good of the Order:  
Council member Smith shared his concerns with the updates to the Comprehensive Plan 
regarding the Racially Disparate Impact Report.  

City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

11



 

City Council Minutes –May 27, 2025 3 
  
 

Council member Green asked if the language in #4 could be adjusted. Mr. Farnsworth 
shared that it had already been adjusted and if we change it any more, it will not be 
accepted by the Department of Commerce.  
 
Council member Bergerson asked if the City Hall Open House was still scheduled for 
June 17th?  City Administrator Brunell shared that yes, it tentatively. 
 
Council member Smith moved to adjourn.  Council member Green seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further, the meeting was adjourned at  6:49 PM. 
 
 
 
 
Mayor       City Administrator 
 
 
Prepared by: Treva Zumek, City Clerk/HR Administrator 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

12



City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

13



City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

14



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D. REGULAR AGENDA 

City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

15



City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

16



City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

17



City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

18



City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

19



City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

20



City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

21



City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

22



City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

23



City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

24



City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

25



City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

26



City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

27



City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

28



City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

29



City Council Agenda Packet - 9/4/2025
 

30


	City Council Agenda - 09.09.2025
	B. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	C. COMMITTEE REPORTS
	D. CONSENT AGENDA
	City Council Study Session Minutes 04-01-2025 (Draft)
	City Council Minutes 05-13-2025 (Draft)
	City Council Minutes 05-27-2025 (Draft)
	Claims and Payroll
	E. REGULAR AGENDA
	Regular Agenda Item 1 (Amending BMC Business Licensing)
	Regular Agenda Item 2 (Pump Track)



